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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAT AWARDS

The Board of School Directors
Montrose Area School District
Montrose, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,

the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining find information of
Montrose Area School District, Montrose, Pennsylvania as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Dlstnct s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility '
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in “Government
Auditing Standards”, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Montrose Area School District’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Montrose Area School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes cvaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Montrose Area
School District, Montrose, Pennsylvania, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, the schedule of the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability on page 50, the schedule of District contributions to
the pension plan on page 51, the schedule of the District's proportionate share of the OPEB liability
on page 52, the schedule of District contributions - OPEB on page 53 and the schedule of changes
in total OPEB liability and related ratios on page 54 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Government Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Montrose Area School District’s basic financial statements. The
supplementary information on pages 55 through 62 as listed in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a
required part of the financial statements.

The supplementary information on pages 55 through 62 as listed in the table of contents
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information on pages 55 through 62 as listed in the
table of contents and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporiing Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with “Government Auditing Standards”, we have also issued our report dated
November 4, 2019 on our consideration of Montrose Area School District’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with “Government
Auditing Standards™ in considering the Montrose Area School District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance,

November 4, 2019 ' W &
Moscow, Pennsylvania




MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT”’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

AUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Montrose Area School District’s financial performance
provides an overall review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District’s
financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the basic financial
statéments and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the School District’s
financial performance.

FINANCIAL HIGHTIGHTS

Key financial highlights for 2019 are as follows:

s Intotal, net position increased $158,143, which represents a 0.4 percent increase from 2018.

e (General revenues accounted for $20,511,696 in revenue or 75 percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and
contributions, and capital grants and contributions accounted for $6,964,866 or 25 percent of
total revenues of $27,476,562.

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of governmental activities decreased by
$608,046 as current assets increased $1,082,305, net capital assets decreased by $384,150,
and deferred outflows of resources decreased $1,306,201.

¢ The School District had $27,318,419 in expenses; only $6,964,866 of these expenses were
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues
(primarily taxes and state revenues) of $20,511,696 were adequate to provide for these

programs.
USING THIS GENERAL ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS REPORT (GAAP)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Montrose Area School District as a financial whole,
an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific
financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District’s finances and a longer-
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the School District’s most significant funds
with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of Montrose Area School
District, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED-CONTINUED)

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the
guestion, “How did we do financially during 20197” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting
takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net position and changes in net position. This change in
net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial
position of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of
many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the School District’s property
tax base, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District reports governmental
activities. Governmental activities are the activities where most of the School District’s programs and
services are reported including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and
maintenance of plant, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities. The School District operates the
food service fund as a business type activity.

REPORTING THE SCHOQL DISTRICT’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The analysis of the School District’s major funds begins on page 14. Fund financial reports provide
detailed information about the School District’s major funds. The School District uses many funds to
account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the
School District’s most significant funds. The School District’s major governmental funds are the General
Fund and Capital Projects Fund.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Most of the School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the firture
periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School District’s general government operations and
the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs.
The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

{(UNAUDITED-CONTINUED})

THE SCHOQL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.
Table 1 provides a summary of the School District’s net position for 2019 compared to 2018:

TABLE 1
NET POSITION
2019 2018
ASSETS AND DEFERRED
QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Current and Other Assets $ 6,995,297 $ 5,892,804
Capital Assets 11,744,004 12,140,993
Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,460,727 6.797.114
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 24.200.028 24,830,911
LIABIUITIES
Current Liabilities 1,861,091 1,438,299
Other Liabilities 54.531.419 58,615,302
TOTAL LIABILITIES 56.392.510 60.053,601
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 5,199,141 2.327.076
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 8,006,603 7,912,453
Restricted 781,387 767,046
Unrestricted deficit (46.179.613) (46.229,265)
TOTAL NET POSITION $(37.391,623) $(37,549,766)

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased by $630,883 as cash and cash equivalents
increased by $965,156, receivables, prepaid expenses and inventories increased by $137,337, capital
assets decreased by $396,989, and deferred outflows of resources decreased $1,336,387. Unrestricted net
position, the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day activities without constraints
established by grants or legal requirements, of the School District increased by $49,652. This negative
unrestricted net position was mainly attributable to Government Accounting Standards Board Statements
No. 68 and No. 71 which required the District to recognize their portion of the PSERS pension Hability
and Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 which required the District to recognize
the total OPEB liability related to their employees.

Table 2 shows the changes in net position for fiscal year 2019 and 2018.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANATLYSIS
FOR THE FISCAT YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(UNAUDITED-CONTINUED)

TABIE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
2019 % 2018 %

REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 224,430 0.8% $ 226,386 0.8%
Operating Grants & Contributions 6,740,436  24.5% 6,533,154 24.2%
Capital Grants & Contributions -0- 0.0% ' 0- 0.0%
General Revenues:
Property taxes 10,809,235  39.4% 10,712,141 39.8%
Grants and Entitlements - 8,716,931 31.7% 8,661,787  32.1%
Other 985,530 3.6% 839,112 3.1%
TOTAL REVENUES 27,476,562 100% 26,972,580 100%
PROGRAM EXPENSES

 INSTRUCTION 16,611,973 60.8% 16,098,661  59.9%
SUPPORT SERVICES:
Pupils and Instructional Staff 1,918,423 7.0% 1,981,343 7.4%
Board of Education, Administration,
Fiscal and Business 1,940,455 7.1% 2,017,429 7.5%
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 2,042 182 7.5% 2,057,118 7.7%
Pupil Transportation 2,091,085 71.7% 1,999,302 7.4%
Other Support Services 1,417,174 5.2% 1,498 717 5.6%
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 1,211,498 4.4% 1,140,462 4.2%
Operating transfers -0- 0.0% -0- 0.0%
Interest and Fiscal Charges 85.629 0.3% 95,429 0.3%
TOTAL EXPENSES 27,318,419 100% 26,888,461  _100%
INCREASE (DECREASE)

IN NET POSITION $ 158,143 84,1

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Property taxes made up 39.4 and 39.8 percent of revenues for governmental activities for the Montrose
Area School District for fiscal year 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Instruction comprises 60.8 and 59.9 percent of District expenses. Support services expenses make up 34.5
and 35.6 percent of the expenses for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

{UNAUDITED-CONTINUED)

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is, it
identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted State entitlements.

TABLE 3
TOTAL COST NET COST TOTAL COST - NET COST
OF SERVICES QF SERVICES OF SERVICES OF SERVICES
2019 2019 2018 2018
Instruction $16,611,973 $12,539,217 $16,098,661 $12,191,151
Support Services:
Pupil and Instructional Staff 1,918,423 1,522,021 1,981,343 1,631,773
Board of Education, Administration
Fiscal and Business 1,940,455 1,749,520 2,017,429 1,810,247
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 2,042,182 1,925,893 2,057,118 1,942,201
Pupil Transportation 2,091,085 717,698 1,999,302 635,078
Other Support Services 1,417,174 1,322,545 1,498,717 1,424,662
Operation of Non-Instructional
Services 1,211,498 488,030 1,140,462 398,380
Operating transfers -0- -0- -0~ -0-
Interest and Fiscal Charges 85.629 85,629 95.429 95.429
TOTAL EXPENSES $27,318.419 $20,353,553 $26,888,461 $20.128.921

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction

between teacher and pupil.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and

process of teaching to pupils.

Board of education, administration, fiscal and business includes expenses associated with administrative

and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of plant activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings, and

equipment in an effective working condition.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as
well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Operation of non-instructional services includes the preparation, delivery, and servicing of lunches,
snacks and other incidental meals to students and school staff in connection with school activities, and
extracurricular activities which includes expenses related to student activities provided by the School
District which are designed to provide opportunities for pupils to participate in school events, public
events, or a combination of these for the purpose of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involves the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other

related charges to debt of the School District.
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The dependence upon tax revenue is apparent. Approximately 39 percent of the costs of the District are
supported by tax revenue.

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Information about the School District’s major funds starts on page 14. These funds are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds had total revenue of $27,474,972
and expenditures of $26,814,933. The net change in fund balance increased by $660,039 with the General
Fund having an increase of $645,698 and the Capital Projects Fund having an increase of $14,341.

The District had budgeted a decrease of $405,832 (of which $150,000 was a budgetary reserve).
GENERAL FUND BUDGETING BIGHLIGHTS

The School District budget is prepared according to Pennsylvania law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

The School District adopted the budget for the fiscal year June 30, 2019 at its June 2018 meeting and
made several budget transfers during fiscal 2018-19. The School District’s budgetary process flows
through the business office after appraisals have been made by authorized supervisory officials. This
system is designed to tightly control the budget at the Business Manager level.

During the fiscal year the District had budgeted to receive $26,087,899 in revenue but actually received
$27,018,931 or an increase in revenue of $931,032.

The following table will illustrate the major differences between the revenues received and the revenues
budgets:

Over Budget Under Budget
Rentals and gas lease $ 371,680 Transportation S 61,846
Current real estate taxes 110,084 Community service activities 75,439
Refund of prior year expenses 178,521 Retirement revenue 87,345

On the expenditure side the District was under budget by $120,498. Overall the District had an increase in
fund balance of $645,698.

The School District had anticipated having a decrease of $405,832 to decrease its fund balance, but the
actual was an increase of $645,698. The fund balance at June 30, 2019 was $4,407,593 and carried over
to the June 30, 2020 budget.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of the fiscal year 2019, the School District had $11,744,004 invested in tand, buildings,
furniture, equipment and vehicles.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019
(UNAUDITED-CONTINUED)

Table 4 shows fiscal 2019 balance compared to 2018.

TABLE4
CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION) AT JUNE 30

019 018
Land $ 1,167,737 $ 1,167,737
Buildings and Improvements 9,604,933 10,065,512
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 971,334 907.744
TOTAL $11.744.004 $12,140,993

Depreciation amounted to $958,342 and $908,485 and net capital assets decreased by $396,989 in 2019
and increased $113,954 in 2018 with the majority being purchased from the capital funds in both fiscal
2019 and 2018.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At June 30, 2019 the District had $3,730,000 of total debt. During the fiscal year 2019 the District paid
$490,000 of principal for this debt.

CURRENT FINANCIAT, ISSUES AND CONCERNS

The Montrose Area School District is financially stable. The District does not have a large industrial base
and property taxes are generated by residential properties.

Finances of the District depend primarily upon state revenues and local property taxes. Should the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania not increase the subsidy payments sufficiently, then local property taxes
would need to be raised to meet any budget shortfall.

In conclusion, the Montrose Area School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many
years. In addition, the School District system of financial planning, budgeting and internal controls are
well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet the challenges
of the future.

CONTACTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, inventory and regulatory agencies and
creditors with a general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District’s

- accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional
financial information contact Ms. Michelle Lusk, Business Manager of the Montrose Area School
District, Montrose, Pennsylvania.

10.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOIL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30,2019
BUSINESS-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE

ASSETS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4924060 h 94,772 $ 5,018,832
Investments 0 0 0
Taxes receivable, net 523,919 0 523,919
Interfund receivables 72,826 57,255 130,081
Intergovernmental receivables 1,219,649 0 1,219,649
Inventories 64,956 4,658 69,614
Other receivables, net 33,202 0 33,202
Prepaid expenses 0 ¢ 0
Total Current Assets 6,838,612 156,685 6,995,297
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Land 1,167,737 0 1,167,737
Building and building improvements 22,614,210 ¢ 22614210
Fixtures and equipment 5,155,516 539,705 5,695,221
Construction in progress 0 0 0
Accumulated depreciation (17,216,889) (516,275) (17,733,164)
Total Non-Current Assets 11,720,574 23,430 11,744,004
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 253,335 0 253,335
Deferred amounts related to pensions 5,115,717 91,675 5,207,392
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 5,369,052 91,675 5,460,727
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 23,928,238 271,790 24,200,028
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interfund payables 57,255 72,826 130,081
Accounts payable 253,986 0 253 986
Accrued salaries & benefits 876,339 0 876,339
Accroed retirement incentive 20,048 6 20,048
Accrued interest 43,384 0 43,384
Payroll deductions & withholdings 0 0 0
Revenues received in advance 24,944 12,309 37,253
Other current liabilities 0 0 0
Current portion of long-term obligations 500,000 0 500,000
Total Current Liabilities 1,775,956 85,135 1,861,091
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds payable 3,230,000 0 3,230,000
Accrued retirement incentive 30,635 0 30,635
Other postemployment benefits 8,064,810 0 8,064,810
Net pension liability 40,212,407 783,593 40,996,000
Long-term portion of compensated absences 2,209,974 0 2,209,974
Total Non-Current Liabilities 53,747,826 783,593 54,531,419
TOTAL LIABILITIES 55,523,782 868,728 56,392,510
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unamortized premium on issuance of bonds 7,401 0 7,401
Deferred amounts related to OPEB 3,980,740 0 3,980,740
Deferred amounts related to pensions 1,189,681 21,319 1,211,000
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,177,822 21,319 5,199,141
NET POSITION
Invesied in capital assets, net of related debt 7,983,173 23,430 8,006,603
Restricted for:  Capital Projects 781,387 0 781,387

Debt Service 0 : 0 0
Unrestricted (45,537,926) {641.,687) (46,179,613)
TOTAL NET POSITION $(36,773366) $  (618,257) _$(37,391,623)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE TO

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTATL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30. 2019

Total Governmental Fund Balance

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different becanse:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial -
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets
consist of:

Land
Buildings and building improvements
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to

future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Total Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term

liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds payable
Bond premium, net of amortization
Accrued interest
Accrued retirement incentive
Other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability
Compensated absences

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5,188,980

1,167,737
22,614,210
5,155,516

(17,216,889)

11,720,574

437,108

5,115,717
253,335

(3,980,740)

(1,189,681)

108,631

(3,730,000)
(7.401)
(43,384)
(50,683)
(8,064,810)
(40,212,407)
(2,209,974)

(54.318,659)

$ (36,773,366)




£l

“S)USTUGIRYS [EToURT asayl Jo ed [erfann ue are sajou Surkuedwioase oy,

UYIA A0 ANA - NOILISOd LAN
UVHA 4O DNINNIDHY - NOLLISOd LAN

uonIso ] 1N u afuegsy

SHNNTATY TvYINED TVLOL

SOOI SILOAUEB][SOSHA]
SPUINIES JUSHLEIAU]

P21ILIISIT 10U SUOHNQLIUOT PUR SAIPISANS ‘SJUBIL)

sasodind [eiauad 0] paaa] saxey (puonednaso pue viides od ‘Apear Ay snqnd

sosoclmd [exousi 10J pa1aa] ‘soxe Awdorg

SHANIATH TYAENAD
INFNNIIAOD AV T¥YIOL

2IAIIG |BUIRU]
2014105 POOT
SenIANaY adk ] -ssaursng

SHLLIALLIV INHWNEIACD TVI0L

) 1981 WA  -TuoT uo jsamy
SHOIAMHIS TYNOLLDTHLSNI-NON TV.LOL

301413 AJUNWIIO))
SBUTANOY WaphIE

ANV HANAATY (ISNAIE) LAN

6102 "0t AN ONIANT ¥VHA dHL H0d
SHILIALLOY LAN O INHWHLV.1S

(LOTLLSIA TOOHOS VARV (SOLLNOW

(€20 [6£°LE) g [gTso) §  (99C°CLL9E) 3

(99L°6%6'LE) (994°119) (000°3£695)

£F1°8S1 (ist'9) PEOPYL

069°[150F 6LL LIGDISO0T

S0869L 0 S08°694

0¥9°601 6LL 195°801

1569148 0 1£6°914°8

$80°901 0 $80901

SETR0R0T 0 CET'608°0L

(ESSTE0E0E) $  lozs) $ {£329rE0E) $ 2 $ 9LV OFL'D g OEVFET GIFRIELT

[i ) 0 0 0 0

oLe'e) {oLT'e) 0 £96'651 1L0'30T POE'SLY

AERT'9FEGT) 0 (£82'9FE 0T} 0 CLY 0879 65E9] CLI'EPO'9L
(679°c8) (6z9's8) 1] ] 0 67958
(69L°088) 0 (09£'08%) i SLO'GE 6SE9T F61'9¢S
1) 01en) [} 0 0 GIET
(ostsLt) (osr'sL) ] SLO'6E 65E91 rREPES
{eL9orz'e) 0 (LLS'0PT'L) ¢ wo'891'T 0 S1E°601'6
(s30°57) ($80°¢Z) 0 $80'6T
(09v'L6T°1) (09r°L62°T) 6796 680°Z6E°T
(869°L14) (869°L1L) LBETELET] $80°160°T
(£68°3T6°T) (£68°826°T) 68TE11 TRIEP0T
{er1'10t) (Tr1ror) 8LT°0F 0T bt
(265°69€) (z65'69¢) £05°9L S60'rY
(828°87€°1) (BLEBPET £59°051 SEO'66RT
(590°6¥5) (s90°6b%) 968°TS1 19610/,
(o e09) (+9€‘c09) £00°L91 LOEOLL
(L12'6E521) 0 (L1Z'6ES'TT) 0 Y51 2L 0 ELEEID9]
0 0 ) 0
(66109} (66129} 1£9°6 0£8'IL
(206859} (Z06°859) 8678 007499
OO1'599°D) (001°599°1) £56°T9L°T ESD'STF'E
©10°€s101) $ - $ (OLo°es 01} $ FLR16Z'T $ 0GR PP TT
TVIOL SHITAILDY SAILIAILOY SNOLLNEATAMINGD SNOLITaRINGD (INV SEOTATES SHSNAdXd
AdAL-SSANISNG 1Y LNAWNIAOD % SINVHD SLNVYED ONLLVIAIO HOd SHOMYHD
NOILISOd IAN N STONVID TVLIAVYD SHNNAATT WV HD0ad

SHOIAYHIS TVNOLLDNAILSNI-NON
SADIAYAS LMOdd (18 TVLOL

5931a.125 Hoddng 19010
Lt 1oE ]

£901A10% TONEHOASTRL | NRpHIG
$001ATOS 1UB]J JO Q0URUSIUIRIA PUE UOLEIdQ

ssauIsng
qiesH [idng
UOTRISINIWpY

HeIg [euonomnysuy
Jeuuosag Tdng
SHOIAYMHS LAOddNS

SHIMAMTS TYNOLLDTALSNI TV.LOL

Sumunuojampy

sureifiong [2EononISu RO

JBUOTIEIO A
Tewadg
Jemiay
INOLLINLSNI

SHLLIALLOY TV INIWNIHAOQD



MONTROSE AREA SCHGOL DISTRICT

BAIANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019
OTHER TOTAL
CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $4,142,673 $ 781,387 5 - $4,924,060
Investments 0 0 0 0
Taxes receivable, net 523,919 0 0 523919
Interfund receivables 72,826 0 0 72,826
Intergovernmental receivables 1,219,649 0 0 1,219,649
Inventories 64,956 0 0 64,956
Other receivables, net 33,202 0 0 33,202
Prepaid expenses 0 0 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $6,057,225 $ 781,387 $ - $ 6,838,612
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BAT ANCES
LIABILITIES
Interfund payables 57,255 0 0 57,255
Accounts payable 253,986 0 0 253,986
Accrued salaries & benefits 876,33% 0 0 876,339
Accrued interest 0 0 0 0
Payroll deductions & withholding 0 0 0 0
Revenue received in advance 24,944 0 0 24,944
Other current liabilities 0 0 0 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,212,524 0 0 1,212,524
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 437,108 0 0 437,108
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 437,108 0 0 437,108
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Inventories 64,956 0 0 64,956
Restricted for:

Capital ouilays 0 781,387 0 781,387

Debt service 0 0 0 0
Committed for:

Future pension costs 118,265 0 0 118,265

Capital 32 Fund 370,410 0 0 370,410

Curriculum 1,537,183 0 0 1,537,183

Bonded Debt 300,060 0 0 300,060
Unassigned:

Unassigned 2,016,719 0 0 2,016,719
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4 407,593 781,387 0 5,188,980
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, & FUND BALANCES $6,057,225 $ 781,387 $ - $ 6,838,612

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTATL FUNDS TO THE, STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2019

Net change in Fund Balances — Total Government Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. In the current period, '
these amounts are:

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense

Issuance of long-term debt is reported as revenue as it

provides current financial resources to govermmental funds,
while repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure
in governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current year,
these amounts consist of:

Bond principal payments
Bond premium amortization

Some revenues that will not be collected for several months after
the District's fiscal year ends are not considered "available"”
revenues and are deferred in the governmental funds. Deferred
revenues increased by this amount this year:

Property taxes

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as
expenditres. However in the statement of net activities, the
cost of pension related benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as pension expense;

District pension contributions
Cost of pension benefits earned, net of employee contributions

Net OPEB liability is considered long-term in nature, and is not
reported as a liability within the funds. Such a liability is, however,
reported with in the statement of net position, and changes in the
liability is reflected within the statement of net activities. This
represents the change in OPEB liability and the deferred outflows
and inflows related to the OPEB.

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
These activities consist of:

Net (increase)/decrease in accrued interest

Net (increase)/decrease in accrued retirement incentive
Net (increase)/decrease in compensated absences

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 660,039

561,353
(945,503)
(384,150)

490,000
1,139
491,139

19,331

3,548,797
(3,992,070)
{443,273)

(74,048)

4,900
(26,889)
82,415

(104,404}

$ 164,634

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAT ANCE

GOVERNMENTATL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES

Local sources

State sources

Federal sources

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Instructional Services
Regular

Special

Vocational

Other instructional programs
Adult/Continuing

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
Support Services

Pupil personnel

Instructional staff
Administration

Pupil health

Business

Operation and maintenance of plant services

Student transportation services
Central

Other support services

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES

Cperation of Non-Instructional Services
Capital outlay

Debt Service

Interest, Refunds and Costs

Principal

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(EXCESS) DEFICIENCY OF

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond issue proceeds

Sale of fixed assets

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
TOTAI OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund Balances-Beginning

FUND BALANCES-ENDING

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

OTHER TOTAL
: CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL.  PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS

$12,310,404 8 5,648 $ - $12,316,052
14,148,584 0 0 14,148,584
559,943 0 0 559,943
27,018,931 5 648 0 27,024,579
11,794,162 239 0 11,794,401
3,235,418 0 0 3,235,418
639,737 0 0 639,737
67,457 0 0 67,457
0 0 0 0
15,736,774 239 0 15,737,013
723,819 0 0 723,819
665,262 0 0 663,262
1,398,559 0 0 1,398,559
419,885 0 0 419,885
417,456 0 0 417,456
1,911,687 62,701 0 1,974,388
2,052,592 35,102 0 2,087,694
1,480,324 17,496 0 1,497,820
25,085 0 0 25,085
9,094,660 115,299 0 9,709,963
508,703 0 0 508,703
1,026 326,162 0 327,188
91,668 0 0 91,668
490,000 0 0 490,000
25,022,340 441,700 0 26,364,540
1,096,091 (436,052) 0 660,039
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 450,393 0 450,393
(450,393) 0 0 (450,393)
(450,393) 450,393 0 0
645,698 14,341 0 660,039
3,761,895 767,046 0 4,528,941
$ 4,407,593 § 781,387 $ - $ 5,188,980
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BATL ANCE

BUDGET(NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAT
GENERATL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAIL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources $11,430,189 $11,430,189 $12,310,404 $ 880,215
State sources 14,129,422 14,129,422 14,148,584 19,162
Federal sources 528,288 528,288 555,943 31,655
Total Revenues 26,087,899 26,087,899 27,018,931 931,032
EXPENDITURES
Instructional Services:
Regular 12,150,273 12,288,469 11,794,162 494,307
Special 3,169,496 3,174,835 3,235,418 (60,583)
Vocational 614,525 615,506 639,737 (24,231)
Other instructional programs 60,618 66,618 67,457 (839)
Adult/Continuing 0 0 0 0
Total Instructional Services 16,000,912 16,145,428 15,736,774 408,654
Support Services
Pupil personnel 782,529 778,029 723,819 54,210
Instructional staff 605,933 649,908 665,262 (15,354)
Administration 1,517,415 1,494,632 1,398,559 96,073
Pupil health 415,910 416,988 419,885 (2,897)
Business 504,352 495,307 417,456 77,851
Operation & maintenance

of plant services 1,801,162 1,787,217 1,911,687 (124,470)
Student transportation services 2,036,835 2,051,835 2,052,592 (757
Central 1,499,675 1,487,595 1,480,324 7,271
Other support services 23211 23,211 25,085 (1,874)

Total Support Services 9,187,022 0,184,722 9,094,669 90,053
Operation of Non-

Instructional Services 529,129 536,913 508,703 28,210
Capital outlay 0 0 1,026 (1,026)
Debt Service: Interest & refunds 91,668 01,668 01,668 0

Principal 490,000 490,000 490,000 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 26,298 731 26,448,731 25,922,840 525,891
(EXCESS) DEFICIENCY OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (210,832) (360,832) 1,096,091 1,456,923
QTHER FINANCING
SOQURCES (USES)
Sale of fixed assets 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0
Operating transfers out (45,000) (45,000) (450,393) (405,393)
Budgetary reserve (150,000) 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources{Uses) (195,000) {45,000) (450,393) (405,393)
Net Change in Fund Balances (405,832) (405,832) 645,698 1,051,530
Fund Balances-Beginning 3,054,291 3,054,291 3,761,895 707,604
FUND BALANCES-ENDING $ 2,648,459 $ 2,648,459 $ 4,407,593 $ 1,759,134

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30,2019
OTHER TOTAL
FOOD PROPRIETARY  PROPRIETARY
SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8 94,772 $ - $ 94,772
Investments 0 0 0
Taxes receivable, net 0 0 0
Interfund receivables 57,255 0 57,255
Intergovernmental receivables 0 0 0
Inventories : 4,658 0 4,658
Prepaid expenses 0 0 0
Total Current Assets 156,685 0 156,685
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixtures and equipment 539,705 0 539,705
Accumulated depreciation {516,275) 0 (516,275)
Total Non-Current Assets 23,430 0 23,430
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 91,675 0 91,675
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 91,675 0 91,675
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES § 271,790 h - $ 271,790
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interfund payables 72,826 0 72,826
Accounts payable 0 0 0
Accrued salaries & benefits 0 0 0
Revenue received in advance 12,309 0 12,309
Other current liabilities 0 0 0
Total Current Liabilities . 85,135 0 85,135
NON-CURRENT LIABOITIES
Net Pension Liability 783,593 0 783,593
Total Non-Current Liabilities 783,593 0 783,593
TOTAL LIABILITIES ‘ 868,728 0 868,728
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 21,319 0 21,319
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,319 ‘ 0 21,319
NET POSITION '
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 23,430 0 23,430
Unrestricted (641,687) 0 (641,687)
TOTAL NET POSITION $ (618,257) 3 - $  (618,257)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
NET POSITION-PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

OTHER TOTAL
FOOD PROPRIETARY PROPRIETARY
SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUE
Food service revenue $ 208,071 $ - $ 208,071
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 201,053 0 201,053
Employee benefits 155,609 0 155,609
Purchased professional & technical services 0 0 0
Purchased property services 17,508 ] 17,508
Other purchased services 1,508 0 1,508
Supplies 283,382 0 283,382
Other objects 3,405 0 3,405
Depreciation 12,839 0 12,839
Tota] Cperating Expenses 675,304 0 675,304
Operating Income (Loss) (467,233) 0 {467,233)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments 779 0 779
State sources 65,511 0 65,511
Federal sources 394,452 0 394,452
Non-operating transfers 0 0 0
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 460,742 0 460,742
Change in Net Position (6,491) 0 (6,491)
NET POSITION, BEG. OF YEAR {611,766) 0 (611,766)
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 5 (618,257 $ - $ (618,257)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019
OTHER TOTAL
FOOD PROPRIETARY PROPRIETARY
SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS

CASH FI OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 208,071 3 - $ 208,071
Cash payments to suppliers for goods & services (397,406) 0 (397,406)
Cash payments to employees for services (205,220) 0 (205,220)
Cash payments for other operating expenses (3,405) 0 (3,405)

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Operating Activities (397,960) 0 (397,960)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL

FINANCING SOURCES
State sources 66,835 0 66,835
Federal sources 366,787 0 366,787

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Non-capital

Financing Activities 433,622 0 433,622

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAT, AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fixed asset purchases 0 0 0
Net Cash Provided by (used for) Capital and

Related Financing Activiiies 0 0 0

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers in/{out) 0 0 0
Earnings on investments 779 0 779

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Investing Activities 779 0 779
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 36,441 0 36,441
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEG. OF YEAR 58,331 0 58,331
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 94,772 3 - $ 94,772
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Loss (467,233) 0 (467,233)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided

by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 12,839 0 12,839
USDA donated commodities 46,871 0 46,871
{(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 0 0 0
(Increase) decrease in inventories (110) 0 (110)
(Increase) decrease in interfund receivable (4,167) 0 (4,167)
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows 30,186 0 30,186
Increase (decrease) in interfund payable 6,275 0 6,275
Increase (decrease) in other current Habilities 0 0 0
Increase (decrease) in revenue received in advance (378) 0 (378)
Increase (decrease) in net pension Hability (23,303) 0 (23,303)
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows 1,060 0 1,060
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 69,273 0 69,273
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (397.960) § - $  (397,960)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
20.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

PRIVATE PURPOSE
TRUST

SCHOL ARSHIP AGENCY

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 6,702 $ 1,330,434
Investrnents 2,250 0
TOTAL ASSETS 3 8,952 § 1,330,434
LIABILITIES

Interfund payable 0 0
Payroll deductions and withholdings Q0 1,235,501
Due to Students 0 94,933
TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 $ 1,330,434
NET POSITION

Restricted for scholarship 3 8,952

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

PRIVATE PURPOSE
TRUST
SCHOLARSHIP
ADDITIONS
Gifts and contributions 3 -
Interest income 20
: 29
DEDUCTIONS ‘
Scholarships and awards 28
28
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,051
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 3,952

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Montrose Area School District (the District) located in Montrose, Pennsylvania, provides a full
range of educational services appropriate to grade levels kindergarten through 12 to students living in
Susquehanna County. These include regular, advanced academic, and vocational education programs,
and special education programs for gifted and handicapped children. The District has a nine-member
elected school board and an appointed Superintendent and Business Manager who oversee the daily
operations of the District. The District is comprised of two elementary schools and one high school.

The accounting policies of Montrose Area School District conform with generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governmental units. The District implemented new reporting model
standards beginning July 1, 2002. Comparability with reports of all prior years will be affected. The
following is a summary of the District’s significant accounting policies:

A REPORTING ENTITY

Consistent with guidance contained in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), Determining Whether Organizations are Component Units-an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the criteria used by the District to evaluate the
possible inclusion of related entities (Authorities, Boards, Councils, etc.) within its reporting entity are
financial accountability and the nature and significance of the relationship. In determining financial
accountability in a given case, the District reviews the applicability of the following critena:

The District is financially accountable for:

Organizations that make up the District’s legal entity.

Legally separate organizations if District officials appoint a majority of the organization’s
governing body and the District is able to impose its will on the organization or if there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
burdens on, the District as defined below.

Impose Its Will — If the District can significantly influence the programs, projects or
activities of, or the level of services performed or provided by the organization.

Financial Benefit or Burden — If the District (1) is entitled to the organization’s
resources or (2) is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance
the deficits of, or provide support to the organization or (3) is obligated in some
manner for the debt of the organization.

* Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District. Fiscal dependency is established
if the organization is unable to adopt its own budget, levy taxes or set rates or charges, or
issue bonded debt without the approval of the District.

As defined, there are no other related organizations which should be included in the financial
statements. The reporting entity will consist solely of the accounts and funds of the District.

23.



(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which constitutes a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for within a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows of resources, fund balances/net
position, revenues and expenditures. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent. The District uses the following fund types:

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are
financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the District’s expendable financial resources and the
related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The following are the District’s
governmental fund types:

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for the general operations of the District and all financial transactions not
properly accounted for in another fund.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the revenue and expenditures of major construction projects of
the District and the Capital Reserve Fund. The Capital Reserve Fund was set up under the
authorization of Sections 1431-1436 of the PA School Code and accounts for monies that can be used
for capital improvements and deferred maintenance thereof, including replacement and purchase of
equipment and furniture.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Proprietary Fund Types account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises.

FOOD SERVICE FUND

The Food Service Fund accounts for all financial resources associated with the operations of the
cafeterias.

24.



(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES (TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS)

Fiduciary Fund Types account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for other funds.

AGENCY FUND

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District as an agent. Agency funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve measurement or results of operations. The following are in the
District’s agency fund:
o The Student Activity Fund accounts for programs operated and sponsored by various
clubs and organizations.
» The Payroll Fund accounts for salaries and wages earned by School District
employces. It handles the disbursing of such amounts to the employees and to other
agencies on their behalf, (taxes, retirement contributions, etc.)

TRUST FUND

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals,
private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to support the District’s
own programs. The following is included in the District’s trust fund:

e  The Private Purpose Trust accounts for scholarship funds for students.

C. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of
activities. These statements report financial information for the District as a whole excluding fiduciary
activities such as the trust and agency fund. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements
distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and District general revenues, from
business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged for services.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues
directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities

and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and
program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges
for services which report fees and other charges to users of the District’s services; (2) operating grants
and contributions which finance annual operating activities; and (3) capital grants and contributions
which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject
to externally imposed resirictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue sources not properly
included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite
columns for non-major funds.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The District’s reporting entity applies all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government-wide,
proprietary fund and component unit financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case,

GASB prevails.

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the
acecrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity
(between or within funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements also report using the
same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess
of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax revenues, net of any uncollectible amounts, are
recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility
requirements are met. Net position (total assets less total liabilities) is used as a practical measure of
economic resources and the operating statement includes all transactions and events that increased or
decreased net position. Depreciation is charged as expense against current operations and
accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement of net position.

The governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both
measurable and available. Available means collectible with the current period or soon enough .
thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Property taxes levied but collected beyond 60 days after
year-end, are recorded as deferred revenue to be recognized as revenue when the taxes are collected.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation
bond principal and interest which are reported as expenditures in the year duc.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
investment income, rent and certain miscellaneous revenues. In general, other revenues are recognized
when cash is received. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues,
there are essentially two types of revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose
or project before any amounts will be paid to the District; therefore, revenues are recognized based
upon the expenditures incurred. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted and are usually
revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses
related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary
funds are charges for services. Principal operating expenscs are the cost of providing goods or services
and inclade administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses
are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.
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(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

In governmental funds when an expenditure is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or
unrestricted resources, the District’s policy is generally to first apply the expenditure toward restricied
fund balance and then to other, less-restricted classifications- committed, agsigned, and then
unassigned fund balances.

E. BUDGETARY DATA

An aperating budget is adopted each year for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis of
accounting. The District utilizes the Executive Budget approach to budgetary control. This approach
requires the Superintendent, together with the Business Office, to prepare and submit a plan of
financial operation to the School Board. The District is not required to adopt an operating budget for
its Capital Projects Fund.

F. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in government funds. Encumbrances at
year-end are reported as reservations of find balances since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but serve as authorization for expenditures in the subsequent year. As of June 30, 2019, the
District had no such encumbrances.

G. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivables and payable
accounts. Any outstanding amounts (reported in “due from™ asset accounts) are considered “available
spendable resources”™. As of June 30, 2019 the outstanding interfund balances was $130,081.

H. CASH AND CASH EQUIVAILENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, certificates of deposit and liquid asset finds, are all carried
at cost, which approximates fair value. The District considers all investments purchased with an

original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

L TAXES RECEIVABLE AND UNEARNED TAX REVENUES

The portion of delinquent real estate taxes receivable that is expected to be received within 60 days of
June 30 is recorded as revenue in the current year. The remaining amount of those and other tax
receivables is recorded as unearned tax revenues.

T INVENTORIES AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Supplies are recorded as expenditures or expenses of all fund types when consumed. Supplies
inventories are valued at cost, determined by the first-in, first-out method. Donated inventory is valued
at fair value on the date donated.

Prepaid expenses represent the cost of goods and services that has been paid for in advance of receipt.
The consumption method is used to account for prepaid expenses in all fund types. Under the
consumption method, prepaid expenses are recorded as assets and expended or expensed as the goods
or services are received.

Inventories and prepaid expenses in the General Fund are reported as a nonspendable fund balance,
which indicates that the amounts do not represent spendable resources and that they are unavatlable for
appropriation. '
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(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

K. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECTATION

The District’s property, plant and equipment with useful lives of more than one vear are stated at
historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary
fund capital assets are also reported in their fund financial statements. Donated assets are stated at fair
value on the date donated. The District generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $35,000 or more as
purchase and construction outlays occur. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated
using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable gain or loss is
recorded in operations. Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are generally as follows:

School buildings 40 years

Land improvements & building improvements 20 years
Furniture, fixtures, equipment & vehicles 4-12 years
Computer hardware 5 years

L. ACCRUED LIABIITIES AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full
from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental funds. However,
compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current fiscal year. The
capital leases, and other long-term obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are not
recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements until due.

M. LIABILITY FOR FUTURE COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Employees of the District are entitled to paid vacation, paid sick days and personal days off,
depending on job classification, length of service, and other factors. Employees are represented by a
number of labor unions, and each contract containg different provisions for such employee-
compensated absences.

In addition, administration and other non-union employees have agreements with the District that
provide for compensated absences. The District normally pays its compensated absences from the
general fund.

At June 30, 2019 the District had a compensated absence liability of $2,209,974.
N. PENSION PI AN

Substantially all full-time and part-time employees of the District participates in a cost-sharing
multiple employer defined pension plan. The District recognizes annual pension expenditures or
expenses equal to its contractually required contributions, subject to the modified accrual basis of
accounting in governmental funds. (That is, if contributions from governmental funds are required but
not made, the difference would not be reported as an expenditure until payable with expendable,
available financial resources.) The District made all required contributions for the year ended June 30,
2019 and has recognized them as expenditures and expenses in the governmental and proprietary
funds, respectively.
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(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

0. UNEARNED REVENUES

Unearned revenue arises when amounts are received prior to the delivery of goods and/or services or
expenditures of allowable costs.

P. NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The School District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Q. INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of certificates of deposit and are carried at fair market value.

R. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

S. ALLOCATION OF INDIRECT EXPENSES

The District allocates the indirect cost of depreciation. (See Note 5)

T. FUND BALANCES

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions” was implemented during fiscal year 2011. The statement
establishes fund balance classifications that comprise hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which
a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated, and
unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five new classifications: nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.
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(NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance are reported for amounts
not available for appropriation or legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Fund balances are classified as follows:

¢ Nonspendabie — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form or legally or confractually required to remain intact.

s Restricted — Amounts which can be spent only for specific purposes because of state
or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

s Committed — Amounts which can be used only for specific purposes determined by
the Board of Education’s formal action through a resolution.

s Assigned — Amounts that reflect the District’s intent to spend resources for a specific
purpose expressed by who is authorized by policy approved by the Board of
Education to make assignments.

¢ Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

U. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities (GASB 65). Under GASB 65, in addition to liabilities the statement
of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents a decrease in net
position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until then. The District has four items that qualify for reporting in this
category. The first is the unamortized premium on debt issuance reported in the government-wide
financial statement of net position. An unamortized premium results from the difference between the
face value of a bond and the price above this face value, at which the bond has been issued. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The
second is the unavailable property tax revenue reported in the balance sheet of the governmental funds
financial statements. Unavailable property tax revenue represents property taxes not collected
(delinquent taxes) within 60 days subsequent to the District’s year-end. This amount is deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The third are
the amounts related to the pension that include the difference between actual and projected investment
earning and the difference between the District’s actual and proportionate share of pension
contributions. The fourth relates to Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) and includes changes of
assumptions and the difference between the District’s actual and proportionate share of contributions.

V. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities (GASB 65). Under GASB 65, in addition to assets the statement of
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred ouflows of resources, represents an increase in net
position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an ouflow
of resources (expenditure)} until then. The District has two items that qualifies for reporting in this
category. The first is the amounts related to pensions such as the District’s contributions for the period
subsequent to the measurement date. The second relates to Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
and includes the difference between projected and actual investment earnings.
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(NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED)

W. PENSION LIABILITY

Effective July 1, 2014, the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, t0 be in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Statement No. 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenditures in order to improve accounting and
financial reporting by governments for pensions. The statement also enhances note disclosure and
required supplementary information for government pension plans.

Statement No. 71 establishes standards for recording and reporting contributions made to a defined
benefit plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability.

X POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

Effective July 1, 2017, the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”)
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions which replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, for the year ended June 30,
2018. Statement No. 75 establishes that governments that do not provide OPERB through a trust that
meets specified criteria will report the total OPEB lability related to their employees. Additionally,
Statement No. 75 requires governments in all types of OPEB plans to present more extensive note
disclosures, including a sensitivity analysis of the discount rate and a healtheare cost trend rate
assumptions used for the valuation, and required supplementary information about their OPEB
liabhilities.

Y. QTHER ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues-an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73 for the year ended June 30, 2018. Statement No. 82 addresses certain
issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Statement No. 68, and Statement No.
73. Specifically, Statement No. 82 addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related
measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and
(3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution
requirements. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the District's financial
statements.

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
GASB 85 enhances consistency in the application of accounting and financial reporting requirements.
Consistent reporting will improve the usefulness of information for users of state and local
government financial statements. The adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on
the District’s financial statements.

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. Staiement No. §6
provides additional guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of
debt, for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished, and notes to financial statements for debt that
is defeased in substance. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the District’s
financial statements.
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS WITH FINANCTAT, INSTITUTIONS

Under Section 440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District is permitted to invest
funds in the following types of investments:

Obligations of (a) the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by
the full faith and credit of the United States of America, (b) the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or
any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth, or (c)
any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or
i{lstmmeﬂtalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.

Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation to the extent that such accounts are so insured and, for any amounts
above the insured maximum, provided that approved collateral as provided by law is pledged by the
depository.

The deposit and investment policy of the District adheres to state statutes. There were no deposit or
investment transactions during the year that were in violation of either the state statutes or the policy
of the District.

Deposits With Financial Institutions and PLGIT
Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance. The
District’s investment policy limits investment of funds to instruments backed by the full faith and
credit of the federal and state governments or those investments specified in the Public School Code.
At June 30, 2019, the bank balance of the District’s deposits with financial institutions, including cash
equivalents, was $7,025,346 compared to the carrying amount of $6,355,968. The difference is caused
by items in-transit and outstanding checks. $6,668,113 of the District’s deposits was exposed to
custodial credit risk and was uninsured and collateralized by securities pledged by the financial
institutions for such funds but not in the District’s name in accordance with the collateralization
provisions of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971 (*Act 727}, as amended. Act 72 allows
banking mnstitutions to satisfy the collateralization required by pooling eligible investments to cover
public funds on deposit in excess of federal insurance.

The Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (“PLGIT”) is a common law trust organized to
provide Pennsylvania local governments with a convenient method of pooling their cash for temporary
investment. PLGIT functions similar to a money market fund, seeking to maintain a net asset value of
$1 per share. Participants purchase “shares” in PLGIT, which invests the proceeds in: obligations of
the United States Government, its agencies or instrumentalities; obligations of the Commonwealth of
Permsylvania, its agencics, instrumentalities or political subdivisions; and deposits in savings
accounts, time deposits or share accounts of institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation to the extent that such accounts are so insured, and for any amounts above the insured
maximum, provided that approved collateral as provided by law is pledged by the depository. Shares
may be withdrawn at any time. PLGIT/PLGIT PLUS have received a “AAAm” rating from Standard
& Poor’s, an independent credit rating agency. At June 30, 2019, the bank balance of the District’s
deposits with PLGIT was $58,950 compared to the carrying amount of $59,068.
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(NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS — CONTINUED)

Investments

As of June 30, 2019, the District’s investinents are carried at fair market value and consist of the
following: '

MATURITY
Certificate of Deposit 4/20/21 $ 2.250
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 2250

NOTE 3 — TAXES RECEIVABLE

Real estate taxes and taxpayer-assessed taxes are recognized as revenue when available on the
modified accrual basis, which means collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Such time thereafter shall not exceed sixty days. The
government-wide financial statements recognize real estate tax revenue when the taxes are levied.

Estimated collectible delinguent taxes at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

OUTSTANDING
BALANCE

Real estate, occupational, transfer tax and per capita taxes $523919

The tax on real estate, as levied by the Board, was 48.8163 mills ($48.8163 per $1,000 of assessed
valuation) for Susquehanna County for fiscal 2019. Assessed valuations of property are determined by
the County and the elected tax collectors are responsible for collection. The schedule for real estate
taxes levied for each fiscal year is as follows:

July 1 -Levy Date

July 1 — Angust 31 -2% Discount Period

September 1 — October 31 -Face Payment Period

November | —December 31 -10% Penalty Period

January 1 ~Turned over to Susquehanna County

NOTE 4 — DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

A summary of the receivables due from other governments at June 30, 2019 is as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY TOTAL
Federal grants S 73,277 $ -0- $ 73,277
State subsidies 1,146,372 -0- 1,146,372
Other -{- ~0- -
Total Due from Other Governments $1,219.649 £ -0 $1,219,649
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

NOTE 5 — CAPTTAT ASSETS

A summary of changes in the capital assets is as follows:

Governmental activities:
Land & improvements (not depreciated)
Buildings & building improvements
Furniture, equipment & vehicles
Total Historical Cost

LESS: Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings & building improvements
Fumiture, equipment & vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities, net

Business-type activities:
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Business-type Activities, net

BALANCE NET BALANCE
2018 ADDITIONS 2019
$ 1,167,737 $ 0-  $ 1,167,737
22,340,843 273,367 22,614,210
4,867.530 287.986 5.155.516
$28.376.110 $ 561353  $28.937.463
$12,275,331  $ 733,946  $13,009,277
3.996.055 211,557 4207612
$16.271.386 $ 945503  $17.216.889
$12.104.724  $(384,150) $11,720,574
$ 539,705 % 0-  § 539,705
503,436 12.839 516.275
§ 36269 $(12839) § 23430

Depreciation expense of $945,503 was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instructional $639,658
Pupil Personnel 29,421
Instructional Staff 27,041
Administration 56,848
Pupil Health 17,067
Business 16,968

Operation & Maintenance of
Plant Services 77,705
Central 60,171
Student Activities 20.624
TOTAL $945,503

34.



(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The changes in long-term debt obligations payable during fiscal 2019 are as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE

7/1/18 ADDITIONS PAYMENTS 6/30/19
G.O.B. Series of 2015 $ 4,220.000 $ -0- $ 490,000  $3,730.000
TOTAL $ 4,220,000 3 -0- $ 490,000 $3,730,000

Total interest paid on the general obligation bonds for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $91,668,
which was funded through appropriations from the general fund.

During the year ended June 30, 2016 the School District issued General Obligation Bonds — Series of
20135 in the amount of $5,175,000 for the purpose of improvements and renovations to the District’s
facilities, capital equipment, and the costs and expenses incurred with the issuance and sale of the
bonds. The bonds are due in varying annual installments plus interest at rates ranging from 0.60% to
2.75% with final maturity scheduled for 2025. Principal due in fiscal 2020 is $500,000.

The following summarizes the District’s estimated future debt service requirements on these bonds as
of June 30, 2019:

FISCAL YEAR

ENDED 6/30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST . TOTAL
2020 $ 500,000 $ 81,768 § 581,768
2021 510,000 71,668 581,668
2022 520,000 61,305 581,305
2023 530,000 50,080 580,080
2024 545,000 37,528 582,528
2025-2029 1,125,000 31,142 1,156.142

TOTAL $3,730.000 £ 333491 34,063,491
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

NOTE 7 — RETIREMENT PL AN

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net position liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions
from PSERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms investments are reported at fair
value.

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania under Title 24
Part IV of the Pennsylvania General Assembly. The members eligible to participate in the System
include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly public school employees who render at
least 500 hours of service in the school year, and part-time per diem public school employees who
render at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania.
PSERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www. psers.state.pa.us.

Benefits Provided

PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly
retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least one year of credited service; (b) age 60 with
30 or more years of credited service: or (¢) 35 or more years of service regardless of age, Act 120 of
2010 (Act 120) preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit reductions for
individuals who become new members on or after July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership
classes, Membership Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of
three years of service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater than 52
with a minimum of 35 years of service. Benefits are generally equal to 2 percent or 2.5 percent,
depending upon membership class, of the member’s final average salary (as defined in the Code)
multiplied by the number of vears of credited service. For members whose membership started prior
to July 1, 2011, after completion of five years of service, a member’s right to the defined benefits is
vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right
to benefits is vested after ten years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited
service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2 percent or 2.5 percent, depending upon membership
class, of the member’s final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years
of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member
would have had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age may apply for
disability benefits. :
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(NOTE 7 — RETIREMENT PLAN-CONTINUED)

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at least
one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-E and
Class T-F members) or who has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E and
Class T-F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been
effective if the member had retired on the day before death.

Contributions

The contribution policy is set by the state statute and requires contributions by active members,
employees, and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Member Contributions:
Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25 percent (Membership
Class T-C) or at 6.50 percent (Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of July
1, 2001, contribute at 6.25 percent (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50 percent (Membership Class T-
D) of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute at 7.50
percent (automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class T-
D membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 1, 2002.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the Membership
Class T-E rate of 7.5 percent (base rate) of the member’s qualifying compensation. All new hires after
June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F membership, contribute at 10.3 percent (base rate) of the
member’s qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a “shared
risk’ provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E
contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.5 percent and 9.5 percent and Membership Class T-F
contribution rate to fluctuate between 10.3 percent and 12.3 percent.

Employer Contributions:

The District’s contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was 32.60
percent of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The rate was certified by the PSERS
Board of Trustees. Contributions to the pension plan from the District were $3,612,392 for the year
ended June 30, 2019.

The District is also required to contribute a percentage of covered payroll to PSERS for healthcare
insurance premium assistance. For the year ended June 30, 2019 the contribution rate was 0.83
percent of covered payroll and the District contributed $91,972.

Under the current legislation, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania reimburses the District for
approximately one-half of the employer contributions made, inchiding contributions related pension
and healthcare. The reimbursement recognized by the District for the year ended June 30, 2019 was
$2,023,663.
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED)

(NOTE 7 — RETIREMENT PLAN-CONTINUED)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a Hability of $40,996,000 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System’s
total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year reported covered payroll as it relates
10 the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2018, the District’s proportion was .0854
percent, which was an increase of .0003 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $4,063,608. At June 30,
2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected
and actual investment earnings $ 201,000 $ -
Changes in proportion 300,000 576,000
Changes in actual experience and
expected experience 330,600 635,000
Changes in assumptions 764,000 -
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 3,612,392 -
35,207,392 $1,211,000

The $3,612,392 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows
for the years ending June 30:

2019 $ 848,000
2020 $ 265,000
2021 (571,000)
2022 (158,000)
$ 384,000
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2018 was determined by rolling forward the System’s total
pension liability as of the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation to June 30, 2018 using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

e Actuarial cost method-Entry Age Normal-level percent of pay

s Investment return-7.25 percent, includes inflation at 2.75 percent

o Salary increases-Effective average of 5.00 percent, which reflects an allowance for
inflation of 2.75 percent, real wage growth and merit or seniority increases of 2.25 percent

e Mortality rates were based on RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted
to reflect PSERS experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015
Mortality Improvement Scale.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be

amended by the board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and
maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

Long-term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Returmn
Global public equity 20.0% 5.2%
Fixed mcome 36.0% 2.2%
Commodities 8.0% 3.2%
Absolute return 10.0% 3.5%
Risk parity 10.0% 3.9%
MLPs/Infrastructure 8.0% 5.2%
Real estate 10.0% 4.2%
Alternative investments 15.0% 6.7%
Cash 3.0% 0.4%
Financing (LIBOR) -20.0% 0.9%

100.0%%6
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

(NOTE 7 — RETIREMENT PLAN-CONTINUED)

The above was the Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates
of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2018.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made
at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually
required rates, actnarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 1s 1-
percentage point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
District's proportionate share of :
the net pension liability $ 50,818,000 $ 40,996,000 $32,692,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive
Amnual Financial Report which can be found on the System’s website at www. psers.state.pa.us.

Pavables to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2019, the District had an accrued balance due to PSERS of $1,229,531. This amount
represents the District’s contractually obligated contributions for wages earned in April 2019 through
June 30, 2019. The balance was paid in September 2019.
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED)

NOTE 8 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The District participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is
potentially liable for any expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant
programs. Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the
disallowance of program expenditures.

The District is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
In the opinion of the District solicitor, the ultimate disposition of any matters cutstanding at June 30,
2019 will not have a material effect on the District’s financial position.

NOTE 9 — SPECTAT TERMINATION BENEFITS

The District’s collective bargaining agreements provide an early retirement incentive for those
employees who retire with a specified level of service to the District. The District pays from 10% to
35% of the final salary based upon the unused sick and personal days that the employee has
accumulated over three (3) years. The District used a discount rate of 6.00% to estimate the effect of
making these payments over future years.

The summary of these changes in special termination benefits in 2019 is:

Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 56,463
LESS: Amortized discount 5,780
Present Value of Special Termination Benefits 50,683
LESS: Current Portion 20,048
Long-Term Special Termination Benefits $§ 30,635

NOTE 10 — RISK MANAGEMENT

Other Risks

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has purchased various
insurance policies to safeguard the assets of the District from risk of loss.

NOTE 11 — NONSPENDABLE FUND BALANCE

At JTune 30, 2019, the District has segregated the ending fund balance of the General Fund for the
nonspendable portion consisting of the following amount:

Inventories $ 64,956
NOTE 12 — BOARD COMMITTED FUND BATANCE

The Board of Education committed the following amounts of their June 30, 2019 fund balance by
resolution as follows:

Future pension costs $§ 118,265
Capital 32 Fund 370,410
Curriculum 1,537,183
Bonded Debt 300.060
Total $2,325918
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(NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

NOTE 13 — POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)
MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The District’s collective bargaining agreements with its employees provide for post-employment
health insurance benefits for eligible employees that have retired through PSERS. The District is
providing coverage from the date of retirement until the individual becomes eligible for the federal
government health insurance program. The cost of such medical, vision and dental coverage for
retirees and spouses is determined by the contract provisions at the time of retirement. Currently, the
retiree pays 100% of the coverage cost. The plan provides post-retirement medical and prescription
drug. The plan is unfunded and no financial report is prepared. These benefits are accounted for in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Retired employees who are ineligible under the above
requirements and choose to participate in the medical plan must pay 100% of the composite rate cost
of such coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At July 1, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefit payments 35

Active employees 198

Total 233
Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the School District are established and may be
amended by the School Board. The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, i.e., premiums are paid
annually to fund the health care benefits provided to current retirees. The retiree is responsible for
100% of the premiums.

Total OPEB Liability

The District’s total OPEB liability of $6,283,810 was measured as of July 1, 2018, and was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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(NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

(NOTE 13 —POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Interest rate 3.36%

Salary increases 2.5% cost of living adjustment, 1% real wage
growth, and for teachers and administrators a merit
increase which varies by age from 2.75% to 0%

Discount rate 3.36%

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.0% in 2018, and 5.5% in 2019 through 2021. Rates
gradually decrease from 5.4% in 2022 to 3.8% in
2075 and later based on the Society of Actuarics
Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs  Retiree contributions are assumed to increase at the
same rate as the Health Care Cost Trend Rate.

The discount rate was based on S&P Municipal Bond 20-year high grade rate index at June 30, 2019.
For mortality rates, separate rates are assumned preretirement and postretirement using the rates
assumed in the PSERS defined benefit plan actuarial valuation. Incorporated into the table are rates
projected generationally by the Buck Modified 2016 projection scale to reflect mortality improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period May 2018.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at July 1, 2018 $ 8,981,137
Changes for the vear:

Service cost 443,021
Interest 279,607
Differences between expected and actual experience ( 114,450)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (3,097,669)
Benefit payments (207.836)
Net changes (2,697.327)

Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 6283810

Changes in assumptions or other inpufs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.0% in 2018 to
3.36% in 2019.
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

{(NOTE 13 ;POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(2.36%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.36%) than the current discount rate:

1% 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.36%) (3.36%) (4.36%)
Total OPEB Liability $6,778,793 $6,283,810 $5,818,951

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the Distriet's total
OPEB Hability, would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Total OPEB Liability $5,475,586 $6,283,810 $7,239,594

QOPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPERB

For the vear ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $88,080. At June 30,
2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 113,363 $ 857,846
Changes of assumptions or
other mputs - 3,028,894

_$ 3,886,740

5 113,363
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

(NOTE 13 —POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS {OPEB) CONTINUED)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

2020 $ (426,712)
2021 (426,712)
2022 (426,712)
2023 (426,712)
2024 (426,712)
Thereafter {1,639.817)

$ (3,773,377)

PSERS HEAIL TH INSURANCE PREMIUM ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

General Information about the PSERS Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

PSERS provides Premium Assistance which is a governmental cost sharing, multiple employer OPEB
plan for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect to participate. Employer contribution rates for
Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance Account that are
sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Effective January
1, 2002 under the provisions of Act 9 of 2001, participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive
premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket monthly
health insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their health
insurance through either their school employer or the PSERS' Health Options Program (*HOP”). As of
June 30, 2018 there were no assumed future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.

Premium Assistance Eligibility Criteria

Retirees of PSERS can participate in the Premiuwm Assistance program if they satisfy the following
criteria: '

e Have 24 ¥ or more years of service, or
Are a disability retiree, or

e Have 15 or more years of service and retired after reaching superannuation age,
and

e Participate in the HOP or employer-sponsored health insurance program.

Emplover Contributions

The District's contractually required cortribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was
0.83% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to PSERS from the District
were $91,972 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

45.



(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

(NOTE 13 —-POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) CONTINUED)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPER

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $1,781,000 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by rolling forward PSERS' total OPEB
Hability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. The District's proportion of the net OPEB liability was
calculated utilizing the employer's one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year
reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2019, the District's proportion was .0853%, which was an
increase of .0003% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $77,940. At June 30,
2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of of
Resources Resources
Changes of assumptions 5 29,000 $ 68,000
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings : 3,000 -
Changes m proportion 5,000 26,000
Difference between expected and
actual experience 11,000 -
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 91,972 -
$§ 139972 5 94,000

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

2019 3 (10,000)
2020 " (10,000)
2021 (10,000)
2022 (11,000)
2023 (11,000)

Thereafter 6,000
3 (46,000)
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)
(NOTE 13 —POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions

The Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2018, was determined by rolling forward the System's Total
OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:
s Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level % of pay
e Investment return — 2.98% - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate
s Salary growth - Effective average of 5.00%, comprised of inflation of 2.75% and
2.25% for real wage growth and for merit or seniority increases
e Premium Assistance reimbursement is capped at $1,200 per vear
e Assumed Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1,200 in
premium assistance per year
e Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and
Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS' experience and projected using a modified
version of the MP-2015 Mortality Improvemerit Scale
# Participation rate:
Eligible retirees will elect to participate Pre age 65 at 50%
Eligible retirees will elect to participate Post age 65 at 70%

The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate:

s  The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 determined the
employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2018

¢ Cost Method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance
through the third fiscal vear after the valuation date
Asset valuation method: Market Value

e Participation rate: 63% of eligible retirees are assumed to elect premium assistance
Mortality rates and retirement ages were based on the RP-2000 Combined
Healthy Annuitant Tables with age set back 3 for both males and females for
healthy annuitants and for dependent beneficiaries. For disabled annuitants, the
RP-2000 Combined Disabled Tables with age set back 7 years for males and 3
years for females for disabled annuitants. (A umisex table based on the RP-2000
Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables with age set back 3 vears for both genders
assuming the population consists of 25% males and 75% females is used to
determine actuarial equivalent benefits).

Investments consist primarily of short term assets designed to protect the principal of the plan assets.
The expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using the OPEB asset
allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each asset class.

The OPEB plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be
amended by the PSERS Board. Under the program, as defined in the retirement code employer
contribution rates for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance
Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year.
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(NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)
(NOTE 13 -POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) CONTINUED)

Expected

Target Real Rate

OPEB-Asset Class Allocation of Return
Cash ‘ 5.9% 0.3%
US Core Fixed Income 92.8% 1.2%
Non-US Developed Fixed 1.3% 0.4%

100.0%

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of
return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2018.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 2.98%. Under the plan's funding
policy, contributions are structured for short term funding of Premium Assistance. The funding policy
sets contribution rates necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third fiscal
year after the actuarial valuation date. The Premium Assistance account is funded to establish reserves
that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding vear. Due to
the short term funding policy, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was not projected to be sufficient
to meet projected future benefit payments, therefore the plan is considered a "pay-as-you-go” plan. A
discount rate of 2.98% which represents the S&P 20 year Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2018, was
applied to all projected benefit payments to measure the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of PSERS Net OPEB Liability to Change in Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Healthcare cost frends were applied to retirees receiving less than $1,200 in annual Premium
Assistance. As of June 30, 2018, retirees Premium Assistance benefits are not subject to future
healtheare cost increases. The annual Premium Assistance reimbursement for qualifying retirees is
capped at a maximum of $1,200. The actual number of retirees receiving less than the $1,200 per vear
cap is a small percentage of the total population and has a minimal impact on Healthcare Cost Trends
as depicted below.

The following presents PSERS net OPEB liability for June 30, 2018, calculated using current
Healthcare cost trends as well as what PSERS net OPEB liability would be if it health cost trends were
1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Healthcare
1% Decrease Trends Cost 1% Increase
PSERS Net OPEB Liability $ 1,780,000 $ 1,781,000 $ 1,781,000
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(NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED)

(NOTE 13 -POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes

in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 2.98%, as well as
what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (1.98%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.98%) than the current rate:

1 % Decrease . Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.98% 2.98% 3.98%
PSERS proportionate share of
the net OPEB lability $ 2,025,000 $ 1,781,000 $ 1,578,000

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's website at www.psers.pa.gov.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE

OF THE OPEB LIABILITY
2019 2018 2017

District's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.0854% 0.0851% 0.0868%
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability $ 1,781,000 $ 1,734,000 $ 1,870,000
District's covered-employee payroll 11,502,272 11,328,393 11,245,720
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 15.5% 15.3% 16.6%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

OPER liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Note: Data is not available for years prior to June 30, 2017

Note: Covered-employee payroll above represents the amount for the year
coinciding with the measurement date

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOQL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 443,021
Interest 279,607
Differences between expected and actual experience (114,450)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (3,097,669)
Benefit payments (207,836)
Net Change in Total OPEB liability (2,697,327)
Total OPEB Liability, Beginning 8,981,137
Total OPEB Liability, Ending 6,283,810
Covered-employee Payroll $ 10,985,298
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 57.20%

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 75 during its year ended June 30, 2018,
Information prior to 2018 vear is not available,

Notes:

Changes of Assumptions
The discount rate changed from 3.0% to 3.36%. The trend assumption was updated.

Assumptions for salary, mortality, withdrawal and retirement were changed to use PSERS
assumptions. Wives are now assumed to be 2 years younger instead of 3 years.

Changes in Benefit Terms
Each yeat's loss (or gain) is recognized over a closed period, using the average of

the expected remaining service lives of all active and inactive employees that are
currently receiving a benefit or may be eligible to receive a benefit in the future.

These figures are based on estimated benefit payments. These amounts may be
adjusted for actual benefit payments made during the year.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BAILANCE

YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

SCHEDULE BUDGET

2019

ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

EXHIBIT A

2018
ACTUAL

REVENUES

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources
Extended term financing
Sale of fixed assets
Interfund transfers

EXPENDITURES
1100-INSTRUCTION-

Regular Programs
1200-INSTRUCTION-

Special Programs
1300-VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
1400-OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL

PROGRAMS-E/S
2100-SUPPORT SERVICES-

Pupil Personnel
2200-SUPPORT SERVICES-

Instructional Staff
2300-SUPPORT SERVICES-

Administration
2400-SUPPORT SERVICES-

Pupil Health
2500-SUPPORT SERVICES-Business
2600-SUPPORT SERVICES-Operation

& Maintenance of Plant Services
2700-SUPPORT SERVICES-Student

Transportation Services
2800-SUPPORT SERVICES-Central
2900-SUPPORT SERVICES-Other
3200-OPERATION OF NONIN-

STRUCTIONAL SERVICES-

STUDENT ACTIVITIES
3300-COMMUNITY SERVICES
4000-FACILITIES ACQUISITION,

CONSTRUCTION & IMPROVE-

MENT SERVICES
5100- DEBT SERVICE
5200-FUND TRANSFERS
5900-BUDGETARY RESERVE

EXCESS REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURES

Fund Balance-Beginning
FUND BALANCE, ENDING

1
2
3

[s v, }

9
10

11
12

13

14
I5
16

17
18

19
20
21

$11,430,189  $12,310404 § 880,215  $11,984,764
14,129,422 14,148,584 19,162 13,887,544
528,288 559,943 31,655 548,222

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
26,087,399 27,018,031 931,032 26,420,530
12,288 469 11,794,162 494,307 11,716,594
3,174,835 3,235,418 (60,583) 3,052,675
615,506 639,737 (24,231) 607,610
66,618 67,457 (839) 84,298
778,029 723,819 54,210 716,621
649,908 665,262 (15,354) 798,601
1,494,632 1,398,555 96,073 1,508,819
416,988 419,885 (2,897) 410,973
495,307 417,456 77,851 378,416
1,787,217 1,911,687 (124,470) 1,900,945
2,051,835 2,052,592 (757) 2,000,228
1,487,595 1,480,324 7,271 1,597,188
23,211 25,085 (1,874) 23,605
535,413 507,393 28,020 437,352
1,500 1,310 190 1,341

0 1,026 (1,026) 85,651

581,668 581,668 - 0 581,368
45,000 450,393 (405,393) 30,000

0 0 0 0
26,493,731 26,373,233 120,498 25,932,285
(405,832) 645,698 1,051,530 488,245
3,054,291 3,761,895 707,604 3,273,650
$ 2,648459  $ 4,407,593  § 1,759,134  $ 3,761,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REVENUE FROM LOCAT SOURCES

Current real estate taxes

Public utility realty taxes

Payment in lieu of taxes

Per capita - Section 679

Per capita - Act 511

Occupation privilege taxes

Real estate transfer taxes

Delinquent taxes

Earnings on investments

District activities

Revenue from intermediary services

Rentals and gas lease

Gas lease renewal

Contributions & donations from
private sources

Tuition

Community service activities

Refund of prior year expenses

Miscellaneous

REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES
Basic instructional subsidy

Section 1305 & 1306

Homebound instruction

Vocational education

Driver education

Special education of exceptional pupils
Transportation

Rentals and sinking fund payments
Health services

Property tax reduction allocation
PCCD safety grant

Ready to learn block grant

Revenue for social security

Revenue for retirement

Miscellaneous

SCHEDULE 1

VARIANCE
2019 FAVORABLE 2018

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) _ACTUAL

$ 9,894,120  $10,004,204 § 110,084  § 9,965,532

12,300 10,649 (1,651) 10,319

1,341 6,698 5,357 6,698

17,846 15,695 (2,151) 16,218

17,846 15,695 (2,151) 16,218

70,212 64,046 (6,166) 63,654

160,000 174,649 14,649 145,351

616,100 604,353 (11,747) 573,749

39,300 103,213 63,913 74,171

1,000 16,359 15,359 11,349

252,024 288,877 36,853 277,831

0 371,680 371,680 389,195

0 180,060 180,060 0

0 0 0 9

0 2,204 2,204 2,436

311,600 236,161 (75.,439) 276,884

36,500 215,021 178,521 153,349

0 840 840 1,801

$11,430,189  $12,310404  § 880215  $11,984,764

SCHEDULE 2

$ 7,636,992 $ 7618251 § (I18,741) § 7,563,115

0 3,140 3,140 13,705

0 0 0 0

6,500 0 (6,500) 2,659

1,800 490 (1,310) 560

1,135,948 1,296,200 160,252 1,148,429

1,417,743 1,355,897 (61,846) 1,354,227

0 0 0 0

26,300 24,992 (1,308) 25,049

1,098,680 1,098,680 0 1,098,672

0 24,971 24,971 0

290,716 290,716 0 290,716

438,219 440,144 1,925 445 428

2,076,444 1,989,099 (87,345) 1,044,984

80 6,004 5,924 0

$14,120,422  $14,148,584 § 19,162  $13,887,544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 3

VARIANCE
2019 FAVORABLE 2018
BUDGET ACTUAY, (UNFAVORABIE) _ACTUAL
REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
NCLB, Title $ 350,049 $ 413,565 $ 63,516 8§ 372,350
NCLB, Title I 78,239 62,316 (15,923) 59,415
NCLB, Title IV 0 24,835 24,835 10,000
ARRA - Education Jobs Fund 0 0 0 0
ACCESS 100,000 59,045 {40,955) 106,157
Other federal grants 0 182 182 300
$ 528,288 $ 559,943 § 31,655 $ 548222
SCHEDULE 4
1100-INSTRUCTION-REGULAR PROGRAMS
Salaries $ 6,842,443 3 6,710,329 $ 132,114 $ 6,686,710
Employee benefits 4,344 420 4,066,935 277,485 4,069,730
Purchased professional and
technical services 55,900 48,535 7,365 54,560
Purchased property services 54,881 56,701 {1,820) 52,985
Other purchased services 707,991 714,604 (6,613) 649,696
Supplies 259,604 186,585 73,019 184,725
Property 2,465 2,464 1 14,796
Other objects 20,765 8,009 12,756 3,392
$12,288.469 $11,794,162 $ 494,307 $11,716,594
SCHEDULE 5
1200-INSTRUCTION-SPECIAT PROGRAMS
Salaries $ 1,642,554 $ 1,631,219 $ 11,335 3 1,572,365
Employee benefits 1,054,530 957,032 97,498 970,281
Purchased professional and
technical services 155,000 390,392 {235,392) 307,446
Purchased property services 0 0 ] 0
Other purchased services 279,241 222,885 56,356 165,116
Supplies 42,760 32,409 10,351 36,046
Property 0 0 0 0
Other objects 750 1,481 (731 1,421
$ 3,174,835 $ 3,235,418 $ (60,583 § 3,052,675
SCHEDULE 6
1300-VOCATIONAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS
Salaries $ 38,898 $ 38,898 $ - $ 39,148
Employee benefits 24,827 18,351 6,476 21,929
Other purchased services 551,781 582,488 (30,707) 546,533
$ 615,506 $ 639,737 3 24231y $§ 607610

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1400-OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL

PROGRAMS-E/S

Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and

technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies
Property
Other objects

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

2100-SUPPORT SERVICES-
PUPIL PERSONNEL

Salaries

Employee benefits

Purchased professional and

technical services

Purchased property services

Orther purchased services

Supplies

Property

Other objects

2200-SUPPORT SERVICES-
INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES

Salaries

Emplovee benefits

Purchased professional and
technical services

SCHEDULE 7

VARIANCE

2019 FAVORABLE 2018

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) _ACTUAL
$ 35418 $ 43875 $§  (8457) $ 28,384
14,550 17,584 (3,034) 11,371
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
15,000 2,990 12,010 43,748
1,650 638 962 795
0 0 0 0
0 2,320 (2,320) 0
$ 66618 $ 67457 $ (839) $ 84298
$16,145428  $15736774 § 408,654  $15461,177
SCHEDULE §
$ 458287 $ 455175 0 $ 3,112 § 439890
295,293 264,133 31,160 264,116
11,625 950 10,675 9,378
0 0 0 0
5,375 329 5,046 1,089
6,279 3,022 3,257 2,103
0 0 0 0
1,170 210 960 45
$ 778,029 $ 723819 $ 54210 $ 716,621
SCHEDULE 9
$ 234296 $ 220756 $ 13,540 $ 316,394
195,012 214,150 (19,138) 259,092
12,600 34,884 (22,284) 2,500

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

38,



Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies

Property

Other objects

2300-SUPPORT SERVICES-

2019
BUDGET ACTUATL
13,200 13,250
6,000 3,632
188,100 178,590
0 0
700 0

SCHEDULE 9 - CONTINUED

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE 2018
(UNFAVORABLE) _ACTUAL

(50) 4,325
2,368 8,009
9,510 207,917

0 0
700 364

§ 649,908 § 665262

$ (15354) $ 798,601

ADMINISTRATION

Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased professional and

technical services
Purchased property services
Other purchased services
Supplies

Property
Other objects

2400-SUPPORT SERVICES-
PUPIL. HEATL.TH

Salaries

Employee benefits

Purchased professional and
technical services

Purchased property services

Other purchased services

Supplies

Property

$ 803,935 $ 789,523

SCHEDULE 10

§ 14412 § 849,837

481,605 449 852 31,753 449,167
120,000 93,159 26,841 140,839
5,775 2,075 3,700 5,136
49,517 39,120 10,397 40,573
13,250 8,058 5,192 5,826

0 0 0 0

20,550 16,772 3,778 17,441

$ 1494632  $ 1,398,559 § 96,073  § 1,508,819
SCHEDULE 11

$ 242,580 § 242,509 80 $ 237428
154,134 162,807 (8,673) 158,500
8,840 7,290 1,550 6,550
1,350 414 936 375

0 0 0 0

10,075 6,865 3,210 8,120

0 0 0 0

$ 416988 5 419885 S (2897) $ 410,973

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 12

VARIANCE
2019 FAVORABLE 2018
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABIE) _ACTUAL
2500-SUPPORT SERVICES-BUSINESS
Salaries $ 205,384 $ 212,372 5 (6,988) § 190,711
Employee benefits 144,815 139,202 5,613 135,267
Purchased professional and
technical services 99,650 3,733 95,917 4,270
Purchased property services 7,500 7,673 (173) 7,358
Other purchased services 16,000 18,090 (2,000) 14,230
Supplies 20,958 35,761 (14,803) 26,120
Property 0 0 0 0
Other objects 1,000 625 375 460

$ 495307 § 417456 § 77,851 § 378,416

SCHEDULE 13
2600-SUPPORT SERVICES-OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE OF PLANT SERVICES

Salaries $ 562,807 $ 355,116 $ 7,691 $ 547,558
Employee benefits 344,292 433,933 (89,641) 424,088
Purchased professional and

technical services 30,142 28,285 ‘ 1,857 30,862
Purchased property services 236,282 264,305 (28,023) 236,160
Other purchased services 127,394 101,369 26,025 135,473
Supplies 435,050 478,413 (43,363) 476,028
Property 50,000 49,176 824 49,564
Other objects 1,250 1,090 160 1,212

5 1,787,217 $ 1,911,687 $ (124,470) $ 1,900,945

SCHEDULE 14
2700-SUPPORT SERVICES-STUDENT
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

Salaries $ 45894 b 45,627 b 267 $ 47,674
Employee benefits 29,053 37,982 (8,929) 35,776
Purchased professional and

technical services 7,000 15,388 (8,388) 3,410
Purchased property services 13,100 16,628 (3,528) 8,334
Other purchased services 1,952,188 1,936,103 16,085 1,902,416
Supplies 3,600 323 3,277 966
Property 1,000 0 1,000 1,652
Other objects 0 541 (541) 0

§ 2,051,835 § 2,052,592 5 (757)  $ 2,000,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2800-SUPPORT SERVICES-CENTRAL

Salaries

Employee benefits

Purchased professional and
technical services

Purchased property services

Other purchased services

Supplies

Property
Other objects

2900-SUPPORT SERVICES-OTHER
Other purchased services

TOTAIL SUPPORT SERVICES

SCHEDULE 135

3200-OPERATION OF NONINSTRUCTIONAL

SERVICES-STUDENT ACTIVITIES

Salaries

Employee benefits

Purchased professional and
technical services

Purchased property services

Other purchased services

Supplies

Property
Other objects

VARIANCE

2019 FAVORABLE 2018
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) ACTUAL
$ 419540 S 457,976 S (38436) S 500,072
607,000 504,690 102,310 600,146
7,450 7,234 216 5,154
135,445 142,485 (7,040) 154,112
54,409 89,723 (35,314) 86,622
92,395 114,558 (22,163) 71,160
170,856 163,658 7,198 179,922
500 0 500 0
$ 1,487,595  $ 1480324 $ 7271 S 1,597,188
SCHEDULE 16
$ 23211 $ 25085 § (1,874 § 23,605
$ 9,184,722  $ 9,094,669 § 90,053  $ 9,335396
SCHEDULE 17
$ 196363 S 196367 § 4 $ 180,79
90,405 73,454 16,951 66,422
43,090 66,099 (23,009) 63,566
16,300 11,020 5,280 15,914
93,290 76,488 16,802 45,499
74,910 63,265 11,645 46,012
0 0 0 0
21,055 20,700 355 19,143
$ 535413 $ 507,393 $ 28,020 S 437352

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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3300-0PERATION OF NONINSTRUCTiONAL

SERVICES-COMMUNITY SERVICES

Other objects

4000-FACTLITIES ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION & IMPRQVE-

MENT SERVICES

5100- DEBT SERVICE
Other objects
Other financing uses

5200- FUND TRANSFERS

Other objects

SCHEDULE 18

VARIANCE
2019 FAVORABLE 2018

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) _ACTUAL

3 1,500 1,310 h 190 $ 1,341
SCHEDULE 19

$ - 1,026 3 (1,026) § 85,651
SCHEDULE 20

§ 91,668 91,668 $ - § 101,368

490,000 490,000 0 480,000

$ 581,668 581,668 $ - $ 581,368
SCHEDULE 21

§ 45,000 450,393 $ (405,393) § 30,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MURPHY, DOUGHERTY & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants

1310 Church Street, Suite 3000, Route 690 = Moscow, PA 18444
Ph: (570) 848 2866 « Fax: (570) 848 2833

J. PAUL MURPHY, CPA PAUL T, MURPHY, CPA
MICHAEL DOUGHERTY, CPA LEAH C. ROSENKRANS, CPA

November 4, 2019

Board of Education
Montrose Area School District
Montrose, Pennsylvania 18801

To the Members of the Board:

We have performed the Single Audit of the Montrose Area School District for the
year ended June 30, 2019, and have enclosed the Single Audit reporting package.

The Single Audit was done to fulfill the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. It
entailed: 1. An audit of the general purpose financial statements and our opinion thereon;
2. areview of compliance and internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of
financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards;

3. an audit of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and our opinion thereon;
4. areview of compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance.

Please be advised that a management letter was not necessary as part of our report.

One copy of the Audit Report was distributed to:

a) Federal Audit Clearinghouse b) Office of Prothonotary
Bureau of the Census Susquehanna County
1201 E. 10" Street Montrose, Pennsylvania
Jeffersonville, IN 47132 18801

c) N.EIU.#19
1200 Line Street

Archbald, Pennsylvania 18403
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The Audit Report was distributed electronically to:

a) Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Bureau of Audits
~ Special Audit Services Division
Forum Place — 8™ Floor
555 Walnut Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101

Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.

64.

Very truly yours,

Z s

Murphy, Dougherty & Company
Certified Public Accountants



MURPHY,DOUGHERTY & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants
1310 Church Street, Suite 3000, Route 690 « Moscow, PA 18444
Ph: (570) 848 2866 - Fax: (570) 848 2833

J. PAUL MURPHY, CPA PAUL T. MURPRHY, CPA
MICHAEL DOUGHERTY, CPA LEAH C. ROSENKRANS, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCOCRDANCE WITH

“GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS”

Board of Education
Montrose Area School District
Montrose, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
“Government Auditing Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Montrose Area School
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Montrose Area School District’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 4, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
Montrose Area School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Montrose Area School District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Montrose Area School
District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Montrose Area School District’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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(MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT — AUDITORS’ REPORT — CONTINUED)

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Montrose Area School
District’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under “Government Auditing Standards™.

-

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Montrose Area School District’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with “Government Auditing
Standards” in considering the Montrose Area School District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 4, 2019 % W

Moscow, Pennsylvania
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MURPHY,DOUGHERTY & COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants
1310 Chureh Street, Suite 3000, Route 690 « Moscow, PA 18444
Ph: (570) 848 2866 « Fax: (570) 848 2833

J. PAUL MURPHY, CPA PAUL T. MURPHY, CPA
MICHAEL DOUGHERTY, CPA . EEAH C. ROSENKRANS, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNTFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Education
Montrose Area School District
Montrose, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Montrose Area School District’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2019. Montrose Area School District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility _
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Montrose
Area School District’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in “Government Auditing Standards”, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Montrose Area School District’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance
for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
on Montrose Area School District’s compliance.
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(MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT - AUDITORS’ REPORT — CONTINUED)

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Montrose Area School District complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Montrose Area School District is respousible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Montrose Area School District’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Montrose
Area School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in infernal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.

November 4, 2019 % / :
Moscow, Pennsylvania

68.



MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL, DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting;
Material weakness (es) identified? yes__ X no
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? yes _X _none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted? yes _X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness (es) identified? yes _X  no
Significant deficiency (ies) identified? yes_ X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section

200.516(a)? yes _X no
Identification of major programs;

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.010 Title T

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750.000
Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? X  yes no

Section II - Financial Statement Findings
No matters were reported.

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.
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MONTRQSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Montrose Area School District located in Montrose, Pennsylvania is a school district
mandated by the Pennsylvania Department of Education. The District provides educational
services to children in Grades K-12.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The reporting entity has been defined in accordance with the criteria established in
Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
Determining Whether Organizations are Component Units — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. The specific criteria used is as
follows: a) financial interdependency; b) selection of governing authority; ¢)
designation of management; d) ability to significantly influence operations;

€) accountability for fiscal matters; f) scope of public service and g) special financing
relationships.

As defined, there are no other related organizations which should be included in the
financial statements. The reporting entity will consist solely of the accounts and funds
of the District,

B. BASIS QF ACCOUNTING

This financial statement has been prepared on the modified basis of accounting except
for the National School Lunch Program which uses the full accrual method.

C. INVENTORY OF MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT

Materials, supplies and equipment of all federal funds are expended on a first-in, first-out
basis as the foodstuffs and supplies are consumed in providing meals and services.

PROGRAM DISCL.OSURES

A NCLB -TITLE

The objective of this program is to improve the teaching and learning of children who
are at risk of not meeting challenging academic standards and who reside in areas
with high concentrations of children from low-income families.
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(MONTROSE AREA SCHOQL DISTRICT — NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS — CONTINUED)

B. TITLE IT — IMPROVING TEACHER QUALITY

The objective of the program is to provide funds to State educational agencies
(SEAs), local educational agencies (LEAs), State agencies for higher education
(SAHES), and partnerships comprised of institutions of higher education (IHEs),
high-need LEAs and other entities to increase the academic achievement of all
students by helping schools and school districts to (1) improve teacher and principal
quality (including hiring teachers to reduce class size) and {2) ensure that all teachers
are highly qualified.

C. NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAMS AND FOOD DISTRIBUTION

The objective of the National School Breakfast and the National School Lunch
Programs are to: (1) assist states, through cash grants and food donations, in making
breakfast and lunch available to school children, and (2) encourage the domestic
consumiption of agricultural commodities and other foods.

The objective of the Food Distribution Program is to improve the diets of school
children, needy persons in households on or near Indian reservations not patticipating
in the Food Stamp Program and in charitable institutions, the elderly, and other
individuals in need of food assistance, and to increase the market for domestically
produced foods acquired under surplus removal or price support operations.

D. INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

The objective of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act is to ensure that all
children with disabilities have available to them a free appropriate public education
that emphasizes special education and related services desi gned to meet their unique
needs and prepare them for employment and independent living.
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MONTROSE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

* NO PRIOR FINDINGS NOTED.
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